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To
All Honorable Share Holders,
Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchanges Commission,
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC,
Chi�agong Stock Exchange PLC,
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited,
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms.

Subject: Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Dear sir,
Enclosed pleased find a copy of Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements including Statement 
of Financial Posi�on, Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and State-
ment of Changes in Equity, Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended on June 30, 2024 of Cra�sman 
Footwear and Accessories Limited for your kind informa�on and records.

Thank you.

Sincerely yours,

Kazi Shahin Uddin
Company Secretary
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No�ce is hereby given that 05th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) to the shareholders of Cra�sman Footwear and 
Accessories Limited the mee�ng will be held on Sunday, December 29, 2024, at 11:00 AM at the Police Conven�on 
Hall, 37/3/B Eskaton Garden Road, Ramna, Dhaka (adjacent to Pravasi Kalyan City). The AGM will be conducted 
Hybrid pla�orm at the link h�ps://agmbd.live/cra�sman2024 to transact the following business.

AGENDA
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the year ended on June 30, 2024 

together with the Reports of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend for the year ended on June 30, 2024 as recommended by Board of Directors.

3. To Re-�re and Re-elect of the Directors .

4. To Re-appointment of Statutory Auditor for the year 2024-2025 and fix their remunera�on.

By order of the Board

Kazi Shahin Uddin
Company Secretary

Dated: December 04, 2024

Notes:
1. The Record Date is November 18, 2024.

2. The shareholders whose name will appear in the Share Register of the Company and in the Depositary Register 
on the record date will be eligible to a�end the 05th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) and qualify for the dividend 
to be declared at the AGM.

3. A Shareholder eligible to a�end and vote at the Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) or may appoint a proxy to a�end 
and vote in his/her behalf (through digital pla�orm) by filling Proxy Form. The Proxy Form must be affixed with 
requisite revenue stamp of Tk. 20/ and must be sent through email to the Share Department of the Company at 
cra�smanfootwear.bd@gmail.com at least 48 hours before the day and �me fixed for the Annual General Meet-
ing (AGM).

4. Members are requested to no�fy change of address, if any, through their respec�ve Depository Par�cipants 
before the Record Date .

5. Login virtual mee�ng through company's provided link and password will be considered as a�endance by the 
Shareholders and virtual mee�ng room will remain open before 24 hours of the mee�ng

6. No gi�/benefit in cash or kind shall be paid/offered to the shareholders as per BSEC circular no. SEC/CMRRCD/ 
2009-193/ 154, Dated, 24 October 2013 for a�ending the AGM.

7. As per no�fica�on of BSEC, the so� copy of Annual Report will be sent to the shareholders’ e- mail address available
in their BO Accounts maintained by the Depository Par�cipant (DP). The so� copy of Annual Report Financial 
Year 2023-2024 and Proxy Form will also be available in the company’s website at h�ps://www.cra�smanfootwear.com. 
The shareholders may also collect the printed copy of Annual Report Financial Year 2023-2024 from the 
registered office of the

Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
47, Lake Circus Kalabagan Dhaka

No�ce of the 05th Annual General Mee�ng
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Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
04 (Four) Year's Financial Summary

Opera�onal Result
30-Jun-2024 30-Jun-2023

Amount in Taka

30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2021

Revenue  766,821,587   733,156,785   239,444,119   37,185,566 

Gross Profit  110,388,984   125,066,372   66,771,702   11,012,365 

Opera�ng Income  9,573,709   141,797   41,148,070   6,412,523 

Net Profit before tax  66,268,248   59,553,155   28,237,232   2,267,212 

Profit for the year Earning per share  2.28   2.35   1.91   0.11 

Opera�onal Result
30-Jun-2024 30-Jun-2023

Amount in Taka

30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2021

Non-Current Assets  429,585,254   435,907,211   445,007,000   436,706,906 
Current Assets  542,045,667   475,349,679   302,639,323   39,076,801 
Shareholder's Equity  408,173,678   303,690,839   193,950,939   100,121,706 
Non-Current Liability  371,284,546   374,965,069   367,789,583   335,888,354 
Current Liability  192,172,697   232,600,981   185,905,802   39,773,647 
Net Asset Value per Share  17.09   16.72   14.89   10.01 
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VISION, MISSION AND OBJECTIVES:

Vision:
To be a globally recognized leader in cra�ing premium cra�sman 
footwear and accessories, combining innova�on, sustainability, and ship 
to inspire confidence and style with every step

Mission:
Our mission is to design and produce high-quality cra�sman 
footwear and accessories that meet the diverse needs of our global 
customers. As an export-oriented company, we are commi�ed to 
fostering sustainable growth by integra�ng ethical prac�ces and 
environmental responsibility into all aspects of our opera�ons. We 
aim to create enduring value for our stakeholders through innova-
�on, opera�onal excellence, and an unwavering focus on customer 
sa�sfac�on.

Objec�ves:
� Enhance our footprint in interna�onal markets by increasing  
 exports and establishing strategic partnerships.
� Consistently deliver products that meet the highest standards of 
 cra�smanship and durability.
� Implement eco-friendly materials and processes, aiming to 
 minimize our environmental impact.

� Drive sustainable growth to maximize shareholder value while 
 maintaining strong community and employee rela�onships.

� Con�nuously invest in technology and design to stay ahead in 
 the compe��ve global market.

Core Values:
� Upholding the highest standards of quality and ar�stry in every 
 product we create.
� Maintaining transparency, ethical prac�ces, and accountability  
 in all business opera�ons.
� Embracing crea�vity and technology to set new benchmarks in 
 the industry.
� Commi�ng to environmentally responsible prac�ces that safeguard
 our planet for future genera�ons.

� Building las�ng rela�onships by delivering excep�onal value and
 unmatched service.
� Fostering a collabora�ve culture where every employee contributes
 to our shared success.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Rezina Begum
Chairman

Dr. Rezina Begum is a Chairman of the Cra�sman Footwear & Accessories 
Ltd. She did her Ph D in March 2014 Thesis Topics-Bengali Women in Poli�cal 
Movement (1905-1947) and her supervisor’s name is Dr Syed Anwar 
Hossain. Department of History, Dhaka University. She did her M. Phill in 
2000 , Department of History, Dhaka University,

Thesis Topics was Begum Patrika O Purba Banglar Nari Samaj (1947-58). 
Her supervisor was Dr Muntasir Mamun She completed Masters of Arts in 
History (in 1995) & Bachelor of Arts in History (in 1993) from Dhaka 
University.

Sadat Hossain Salim
Managing Director
Sadat Hossain Salim is the founder and managing director of the company. 
Sadat Hossain Salim is a renowned corporate management personality. He 
earned his fame by dint of his intellect, far sightedness, and experience of 42 
years in the corporate arena of Bangladesh. He holds a master’s Degree in 
both Industrial and Business management from the University of Leeds. In 
addi�on, a Fellow of the Bri�sh Ins�tute of Business Management, this genius 
icon got an exclusive chance to study along with many corporate visionaries of 
the same ins�tute, which adorned in him the charisma that later elevated him 
and the ins�tutes he worked for, to a new height. Returning from England, he 
started his career with Mul�na�onal Duncan Brother. His maiden venue with 
a company of Interna�onal reputa�on enabled him to see things from a 
broader and excellent perspec�ve. For the last Forty-Two years. He honed his 
skills in corporate management gracing various Senior Management Posi�ons 
in leading and reputed conglomerates Duncan Brothers, Partex Group, Apex, 
HRC Group, Anwar Landmark Ltd., Rupayan Housing Estate Ltd.
Duncun Brothers, in the Tea planta�on and Tea industries of Bangladesh. He 
played a significant role in the moderniza�on of Tea industries under a Bri�sh grant. Salim joined Partex Group in the late 
‘80s, as General Manager for Industrial Complex 2. His �reless effort helped for raising the flagship industry of the group, 
Danish condensed milk Ltd. and many more complicated industries of Partex group. He, later on, joined Apex Group as 
General Manager and played a pivotal role in establishing the famous Apex footwear Industries and Apex leather cra� Ltd. 
Salim was also General Manager of HRC Group, where he modernized the Leather and Tea packaging industry of the Group. 
He is an extensively traveled person and has acquired vast knowledge and experience in the field of industrial develop-
ment, export market, overseas business, and interna�onal trading.
In the Real Estate sector, he started his career as the Director Marke�ng of BTI. Then there was no looking back. A number 
of famous real estate companies have made their mark only a�er they were blessed with the Midas touch of this corporate 
veteran. He was the Managing Director of the Anwar land Mark Ltd. when the century-old Anwar group opened its real 
estate wing. Before joining there, he was working as Managing Director of Rupayan Housing Estate Ltd. Then again, he took 
up the posi�on of vice chairman in Rupayan Group. This promising professional put his best knowledge and experience in 
that sector and brought a spectacular change be it the concept of execu�on when it comes to solving housing or property 
related any kind of problems. During his stay as the Rupayan Vice Chairman, his phenomenal plan to introduce the 'town-
ship' concept and to build its first community in Narayanganj s�rred the total real estate community and earned him 
immense Ku-dos. Salim is an eminent social personality as well. He served as a successful president of Dhaka Club Ltd. A 
100-year & most pres�gious social ins�tu�on in Bangladesh for consecu�ve four (4) terms from 2007- �ll 2011.
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Sara Hossain
Director

Sara Hossain graduated in Environmental Studies from York University, 
Toronto, Canada in 2006. She is a passionate, process-driven, and 
dedicated professional with over 19 years of intercon�nental working 
experience. Her diverse work and educa�onal background coupled with 
varied exper�se allow her to develop crea�ve solu�ons and synergies to 
generate be�er business outcomes. She has a keen interest in product 
development, par�cularly in the leather sector. Her global experiences 
include working for the Government, Private and Non- profit sectors, 
highligh�ng the Ministry of Health Canada, Infrastructure Ontario, CB 
Richard Elis Canada, CAMH Canada etc. She is the Director of Corporate 
Affairs, Cra�sman Footwear & accessories. Sara Hossain travelled to over 
30 countries with family and has a great interest in pain�ng. She has a 
compila�on of over 25 pain�ngs, and working towards an exhibi�on. She 
is a mental health ac�vist and conducted several virtual Mental health 
talks to raise awareness. She is a former Cultural Director of York Univer-
sity Bangladeshi Student Federa�on, Toronto. Also, an alumni of Earth 
Club and Photography Club of North South University. A profound 
member of Dhaka Club and Gulshan Club.

Rumana Begum
Director

Rumana Begum aged is 57 years. She is a Director of the company. She 
obtained M.Sc. & B.Sc. Degree in Geography from Dhaka University. She is 
working in City bank ltd as Vice President from 3rd March 2003 to �ll Date. 
Earlier she was working as a Former Analyst Programmer from Jan 2002 to 
Feb 2003 She also worked as a Programmer from Aug 1997 to Dec 2001 in 
Leads Corpora�on Limited, for accelera�ng posi�ve and social changes, 
she maintains a very good rapport with different social and cultural organi-
za�ons

Mahe Alam
Director

Mahe Alam was born and raised in Dhaka, then moved to Canada for 
higher studies. He has been living in Toronto, Canada, for almost two 
decades and has 21 years of working experience in the finance industry in 
Canada. He led major IT projects for Toronto-Dominion Bank and 
Sco�abank and received mul�ple dis�nguished awards for his outstanding 
work. He has a keen interest in real estate development and became the
founder of a real estate company in Toronto. A�er moving back to Bangladesh, 
he joined Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited as a Director of 
Opera�on. He is an avid traveler who has traveled to over 30 countries. He 
was an ac�ve musician in his early twen�es and released an album. He has 
par�cipated in a variety of social well-being ac�vi�es both in Canada and 
Bangladesh. He is a member of the Dhaka Club and the Gulshan Club.
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Sabrina Zaman
Director

Sabrina Zaman majored in Marke�ng & Communica�ons from Middlesex 
University, London. Before that she Completed her master’s Degree in 
Interna�onal Rela�ons from the University of Dhaka. Sabrina Zaman, 
started working for Impact PR as the Account  Director  in  February  2007. 
She  became  the  Chief Exencuteiv of the very first Dcember 1, 2010 PR 
agency of the country She is the official trainer for PR and media rela�ons, 
the agency offers to its corporate clients. She has vast work experiences 
both in Dhaka and London. She is married to M Shamsur Rahman, Director 
of Beximco Communica�ons and CEO of Independent Television. She is 
the daughter of Prof. M Akhteruzzaman, renowned Cardiologist and 
professor of Medicine. Her eldest sister is an engineer working for Intel at 
Silicon Valley and her youngest sister is a doctor at Port Macquarie in 
Australia. She is a Member of Dhaka Club, Banani Club, ACCL and Dhaka 
Boat Club. She loves to travel, meet new people and listen to good music.

Dr. Md Zahirul Islam
Director

Dr. Md. Zahirul Islam is a chairman of the Prilink Securi�es Ltd. His father’s 
name is MD. Shafiqul Islam and mother name is Amena Begum. He was 
born in September 30, 1971. He obtained his M.B.B.S degree from the 
Dhaka Medical College. He has also business opera�ons in Bangladesh. Dr. 
Md Zahirul Islam is a Director of the Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories 
Ltd.

Dr. Md. Abu Syed Tito
Director

Dr. Md. Abu Syed Tito is the Managing Director of Prilink Securi�es Ltd. His 
father’s name is Md. Solaiman Goni, and his mother’s name is Romesha 
Khatun. He was born on September 5, 1974. He earned his M.B.B.S. 
degree from Sir Salimullah Medical College. Currently, Dr. Md. Abu Syed 
Tito serves as a Director of Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Ltd.
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Kazi Shahin Uddin
Company Secretary

Kazi Shahin Uddin has been a key part of Cra�sman Footwear & 
Accessories Limited since joining in 2017 as an Execu�ve in the 
Accounts & Administra�on Department. Through his dedica�on and 
exper�se, he rose to the posi�on of Senior Deputy Manager, taking charge 
of vital func�ons such as accoun�ng, administra�on, and banking 
opera�ons. His contribu�ons have been instrumental in streamlining the 
company’s opera�ons. His contribu�ons have been

instrumental in streamlining the company’s opera�ons. In 2023, he was 
appointed as the Company Secretary, where he con�nues to play a pivotal 
role in ensuring compliance, governance, and strategic planning. Kazi 
Shahin Uddin holds both B.B.A. and M.B.A. in Accoun�ng from Na�onal 
University, reflec�ng his strong academic founda�on and commitment to 
excellence in his field.

Md. Ferdous Hossain
Chief Financial officer (CFO)

Md. Ferdous Hossain joined Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited 
in the year 2022 and contributed a lot to shape up the governance, 
Accounts & Financial audit, compliance and internal control system of the 
organiza�on. He has professional and qualified experience. He completed 
Chartered Accountancy Course (CACC) from a renowned CA Bangladesh 
namely, Ahsan Zamir & Co, Chartered Accountants.

He is currently in professional level and pursuing Chartered Accountancy 
qualifica�on from the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh 
(ICAB).Md. Ferdous Hossain completed Bachelor of Business Administra�on 
(BBA) and Master of Business Administra�on (MBA) from reputed University 
of Dhaka in Bangladesh.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to welcome 
all our esteemed shareholders to the 05th Annual General 
Mee�ng of the company. I would also like to extend my heart-
felt gra�tude to our honorable shareholders for joining us and 
making this event a success.

With great pleasure, I present the Report of the Board of Direc-
tors, the Audited Statement of Financial Posi�on, the State-
ment of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income, and 
other Financial Statements of the company for the year ended 
June 30, 2024.

Dear shareholders, as we reflect on 54 years of independence, 
global a�en�on is drawn to the remarkable economic and 

social progress our country has achieved in recent decades. Despite the setbacks caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, 
our na�on is on track to become a middle-income country within the next few years.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gra�tude and hear�elt thanks to all our valued customers 
for their trust in our products, our employees for their �reless efforts, and our suppliers for providing high-quality 
materials. Your trust, confidence, con�nued support, and coopera�on have been invaluable throughout the year.

I am also profoundly grateful to our valued customers, honorable shareholders, clients, well-wishers, and regulatory 
authori�es, par�cularly the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC 
(DSE), Chi�agong Stock Exchange PLC (CSE), Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh Investment 
Development Authority (BIDA), Financial Repor�ng Council (FRC), and Central Depository of Bangladesh Limited 
(CDBL). I extend my gra�tude to our bankers, insurers, and other stakeholders for their prudent guidance and 
support. I sincerely hope this support will con�nue in the years ahead.

I am delighted to announce that your board has recommended a 10% cash dividend to the General Public Shareholders, 
excluding Sponsors and Directors, for the year ending June 30, 2024. I trust our shareholders will welcome and 
approve the Board’s recommenda�ons, considering the business environment of the country.

I would like to specially thank our Managing Director, Mr. Sadat Hossain Salim, for his enthusias�c leadership. His 
foresightedness and the dedicated efforts of his team have been instrumental in sustaining our growth trajectory. 
We firmly believe his leadership will guide us to a more prosperous future.

Once again, I warmly welcome you to the 05th Annual General Mee�ng of Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories 
Limited. I extend my hear�elt compliments to all of you and look forward to your con�nued support and coopera�on 
as we work towards a brighter future for all.

Thanking you and best regards,

Dr. Rezina Begum
Chairman
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HISTORY OF OUR DIVIDEND PAYMENT FOR THE LAST
04 (FOUR) YEARS IS AS FOLLOWS

History of Our Dividend Payment for the last 04 (Four) Years is as follows

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE
The Company has obtained External assurance on the following reports in the repor�ng period under considera�on:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Composi�on of Board
The Board of Directors consist of 08 (Eight) members including Managing Director having diverse and professional 
exper�se and experiences. The Directors are from varied businesses and other backgrounds and their experience 
enables them to execute independent judgments on the Board where their views carry substan�al weight in the 
decision making. They contribute to the Company's strategy and policy formula�on in addi�on to maintaining its 
performance as well as its execu�ve management.

Company Secretary
A qualified Company Secretary assists the Board. The Company Secretary is appointed for maintaining the essen�al 
link and liaison with both internal and external agencies and at the same �me ensuring ac�ve aggrega�on, compila�on 
and �mely flow of informa�on to the Stakeholders and Board. The BSEC Corporate Governance Code also provides 
that a Company Secretary is to be appointed. The Company Secretary, being a governance official, drives the corporate 
compliance agenda, while also providing support to the Chairman and other members of the Board for ensuring its 
effec�ve func�oning. A part from the core roles, the Company Secretary also perform as the secretary to the Board 
Sub-Commi�ees and the responsibili�es of the Chief Compliance Officer of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer
Md.Ferdous Houssain, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the company is a professional and qualified as a Chartered 
Accountant from the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). He is looking a�er the accounts and 
finance department of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGING DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
In compliance with the requirement of the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC) guidelines, the 
roles of Chairman and Managing Director have been clearly defined by the Board of Directors. In the absence of the

Year Dividend Payment (%)

2023-2024 10% Cash Dividend (Excluding Sponsors & Directors)

2022-2023 No Dividend

2021-2022 No Dividend

2020-2021 No Dividend

SL No Descrip�on Report External Assurance

1 Independents Auditor's Report and Audited G. Kibria & CO, Chartered Accountants House 51 (2nd Floor), 
 Financial Statement Road 14, Block G, Niketon, Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh
2 Provident Fund N/A

3 Gratuity Fund N/A
  Haruner Rasid & Associate, Chartered Secretaries &
4 Independent Scru�nizer Management Consultancy ,Chand Mansion (6th Floor) 66
  Dilkusha Dhaka-1000
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Chairperson of the Board, the Chairperson for par�cular Board's mee�ng has been elected among themselves from 
no execu�ve directors. The reason of absence of regular Chairperson is dully recorded in the minutes.

(a) The posi�ons of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director and/or Chief Execu�ve Officer (CEO) of 
the Company filled by different individuals and their du�es & responsibili�es are well defined. The Chairperson is 
responsible for leadership of the Board for ensuring its effec�veness on all aspects of its role and also for facilita�ng 
the produc�ve contribu�on of all Directors.

(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Execu�ve Officer (CEO) of the Company is not holding the same 
posi�on in another listed company of any listed company.

Roles and Responsibili�es of the Chairperson
The Chairman is elected by the Board. The Chairman is responsible for the overall leadership and efficient func�oning 
of the Board of Directors. He is responsible for organizing business of the Board, ensuring its effec�veness and se�ng 
its agenda to the best interests of the stakeholders. The Chairman is not involved in the day today business of the 
Company.

Roles and Responsibili�es of Managing Director or CEO
Subject to the control and supervision of the Board of Directors the business and affairs of the Company manage by 
the Managing Director. The Managing Director is responsible for overall ac�vi�es of the business. He also responsible 
to ac�vi�es, manage and administer corporate business strategy, ensure adherence to policies and procedures, 
applicable regula�ons and laws, and monitoring excep�ons and serious devia�ons, manage the overall human 
resources and skills/competencies pool to ensure the effec�ve and efficient running of the company, represent the 
company with customers, suppliers, governments, financial ins�tu�ons, the media, the community and the public. 
The Managing has control of the company on a day-to-day basis and is accountable to the Board for its financial and 
opera�onal performance

Directors, CEO/MD, CS, CFO, HIAC and their spouses and minor children:

Execu�ves:

QUARTERLY/YEARLY RESULTS
Shareholders are provided with Quarterly Financial Statements and the Annual Report, which the Company considers as 
its principal communica�on with them and other stakeholders. The quarterly results of the Company is published in 
the newspapers. Yearly results are generally published in the Annual Report and the so� copy of the report sent to 
the shareholders' through email. These reports are also available on the Company's website: 
www.cra�smanfootwear.com.

Name Designa�on No. of Shares Persentage

Sadat Hossain Salim Managing Director 6,870,560 24.54%
Sara Hossain Director 560,000 2.00%
Rumana Begum Director 560,000 2.00%
Rezina Begum Director & Chairman 560,000 2.00%
Md. Zahirul Islam Director 750,000 2.68%
Md. Abu Syed Titu Director 750,000 2.68%
Mahe Alam Director 1,949,440 6.96%
Sabrina Zaman Director 560,000 2.00%

Name Designa�on No. of Shares Persentage

Kazi Shahin Uddin Company Secretary 0 0%

Md. Ferdous Hossain Chief Financial Officer 0 0%
Anwar Hossain Bulbul DGM 0 0%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors of the company drives this par�cular area. Corporate Governance is perceived as a system involving and 
aligning stakeholders' interest in overseeing the business overall. It underscores transparency, accountability and a 
culture of compliance among all the par�cipants. Philosophy of the governance remain a firm commitment from the 
board being at the helm that the obliga�ons to the stakeholders at large and alike is given the a�en�on and focus it 
deserves.

Corporate Governance has been detailed in a separate Chapter to this Annual Report. It also embodies summariza-
�on of the conduct and ac�vi�es of the Board and its Commi�ees including the a�endance.

HUMAN RESOURCES
A high standard Human Resource Department are engaged in job analysis, recruitment of right people in right job, 
employee's orienta�on and training, managing salaries & wages and other benefits. Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories 
Limited has also been taking ini�a�ves for skill development of the officers, staffs and workers by arranging internal, 
local and foreign training facili�es throughout the year.

LABOR LAW
Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited always complied with the provisions of the Bangladesh Labor Law, 2006 
and subsequent amendments up to 2018 along with the provisions of the Workers Profit Par�cipa�ons Fund and 
Employee Welfare fund.

Minimum wage:
Salaries are confiden�al between the employees concerned and the HR Division. Salary Structuring of the Company 
are reviewed as required (�me to �me) to allow adjustments in the cost of living and market forces rela�ng to the 
industry (subject to the approval of Board of Directors).

Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited is complying with all provisions of the labor law including the minimum 
wage payment to its employee. None of the employees whether permanent, contractual or any other category who 
were receiving the wage or remunera�on, allowances & benefits not less than Tk.7,100.00 per month and annually 
Tk.85,200.00.

Roles, Responsibili�es & Du�es of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary (CS)

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) provides both opera�onal and programma�c support to the organiza�on. The CFO 
supervises the finance unit and is the chief financial spokesperson for the organiza�on. The CFO reports directly to 
the Managing Director (MD) and directly assists on all strategic and tac�cal ma�ers as they relate to budget management, 
cost benefit analysis, forecas�ng needs and the securing of new funding.

Roles, Responsibili�es & Du�es of Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
a. Assist in performing all tasks necessary to achieve the organiza�on's mission and help execute staff succession and  
 growth plans.
b. Train the Finance Unit and other staff on raising awareness and knowledge of financial management ma�ers.
c. Work with the Managing Director (MD) on the strategic vision including fostering and cul�va�ng stakeholder   
 rela�onships as well as assis�ng in the development and nego�a�on of contracts.
d. Assess the benefits of all prospec�ve contracts and advise the Execu�ve Team on programma�c design and 
 implementa�on ma�ers.
e. Ensure adequate controls are installed and that substan�a�ng documenta�on is approved and available such that 
 all purchases may pass independent audits.
f. Oversee the management and coordina�on of all fiscal repor�ng ac�vi�es for the organiza�on including: Revenue 
 /Expense and balance sheet reports etc.
g. Oversee all purchasing and payroll ac�vity for staff and par�cipants.
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h. Develop and maintain systems of internal controls to safeguard financial assets of the organiza�on.
i. Oversee the coordina�on and ac�vi�es of independent auditors and the prepara�on of the annual financial statements
 is in accordance with Generally Accepted Accoun�ng Principle (GAAP), Bangladesh Accoun�ng Standard (BAS) and  
 Bangladesh Standard on Audi�ng and BFRS etc.
j. A�end Board and Subcommi�ee mee�ngs: including being the lead staff on the Audit/Finance Commi�ee.
k. Monitor banking ac�vi�es of the organiza�on.
l. Ensure adequate cash flow to meet the organiza�on's needs.
m. Serve as one of the trustees and oversee administra�on and financial repor�ng of the organiza�on's Savings and 
 Re�rement Plan.
n. Inves�gate cost-effec�ve benefit plans and other fringe benefits which the organiza�on may offer employees and 
 poten�al employees with the goal of a�rac�ng and retaining qualified individuals.
o. Oversee the produc�on of monthly reports including reconcilia�ons with Banks as well as financial statements 
 and cash flow projec�ons and annual budgets for use by Execu�ve management, as well as the Audit/Finance  
 Commi�ee and Board of Directors.
p. Assist in the design, implementa�on, and �mely calcula�ons of wage incen�ves, commissions, and salaries for the staff.
q. Oversee Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable and ensure a recovery plan is in place.
r. Oversee the maintenance of the inventory of all fixed assets, including assets purchased with government funds 
 (computers, etc.) assuring all are in accordance with federal regula�ons.

Company Secretary (CS)
The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the administra�ve responsibili�es set out in company law and 
the ar�cles of associa�on are properly carried out. The post has no execu�ve or management responsibili�es unless 
these are explicitly delegated by the Board of Directors. So, a company secretary cannot, for example, authorize 
expenditure, borrow money, alter registers or appoint auditors without the authority of the directors or company 
members. In addi�on to ensuring that the company complies with the law and observes its own regula�ons, a 
company secretary may be assigned other func�ons in the company's ar�cles of associa�on or they may be 
delegated by the company's directors. A number of du�es are imposed on the company secretary by the Companies 
Acts. A Company Secretary who a�ends general mee�ngs of the Company's mee�ngs has no vote unless he or she is 
a member of the Company, and a Company Secretary who a�ends mee�ngs of the governing body has no vote 
unless he or she is also a company director. Although a company secretary may have no say in the company's 
decisions, he or she is an officer for the purposes of company law and can be held liable in the same way as a 
company director for breach of company law du�es. A Company Secretary is an important official who ensures that 
best management prac�ces and work ethics are followed to create wealth crea�on for the company. He is the one 
who represents the company for internal and external stakeholders, coordinates the policies of the company and 
management func�on, guides on the strategic decisions for the be�erment and growth of the company like merger, 
acquisi�on and join collabora�on

Roles, Responsibili�es & Du�es of Company Secretary (CS)
a. To organize board mee�ngs, informing board of directors about the impending mee�ng, formula�ng the agenda

of the mee�ng with Chairman or Managing Director (MD), compiling the minutes of the mee�ng and 
maintaining minute book

b. To ensure that Annual General Mee�ngs (AGM) are held as per the Companies Act and the companies Ar�cle 
of Associa�on, He is responsible for issuing no�ces of mee�ngs, distribu�on of proxy forms, helping directors 
update themselves and ge�ng prepared in case any shareholder asks ques�ons, helping directors prepare 
briefing material and ensuring that security arrangements are done for the mee�ng. During the mee�ng, they 
have to ensure that proxy forms are processed proper vo�ng is carried out properly and recording the 
minutes of the mee�ng.

c. To ensure that the Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on is properly complied with. In case any amendments
are issued, they have to make sure that they are implemented in the right manner.

d. To maintain rela�ons with Bangladesh Securi�es & Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC 
(DSE), Chi�agong Stock Exchange PLC (CSE), and the respec�ve regulatory bodies. And he/she is responsible 
for relaying informa�on regarding the company to the market.
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e. To maintain the statutory registers regarding the members, company charges, directors and secretary, directors' 
interests in shares and debentures, interests in vo�ng shares and debenture holders.

f. To file annual reports, amended Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on, return of allotments, no�ces of appointments,
removal and resigna�on of directors and the secretary, no�ces of removal or resigna�on of the auditors, change 
of registered office and resolu�ons in accordance with the Companies Act with the Registrar of Joint Stock 
Companies and Firms (RJSC).

g. To publish of the company's annual report and accounts.
h. To maintain the company's register of members, deal with ques�ons of the shareholders and transfer of

shareholding etc.
i. To communicate with shareholders regularly both individual and ins�tu�onal through circulars and no�ces, and 

ensure the payment of dividends and interest.
j. To keep an eye on register of members in case any stakeholder is aiming at taking over the company.
k. To play a key role in implemen�ng acquisi�ons, disposals and mergers. They have to make sure that proper 

documenta�on is in place and proper commercial evalua�on is done.
l. To make sure that the procedure for appointment of directors is followed properly.
m. To ensure that the newly-appointed directors have a proper induc�on and special training organized, if the need be.
n. To provide all types of support and guidance to the directors, helping them in discharging their du�es.
o. To ensure that all statutory and regulatory requirements are properly complied with. They play a key role in ensuring

that the decisions of the Board on the whole are properly implemented and communicated within the organiza-
�on and advise the company and its board of Directors on business ethics and corporate governance,

p. To ensure that the interest of the stakeholders is safeguarded and should communicate with them on regular basis.
q. To comply with the company's obliga�ons under the Companies Acts.
r. To make contracts within his or her own sphere of competence i.e., the day-to-day administra�on of the company 

if authorized to do so by the directors of the Company.

WEBSITE AND IT FACILITIES OF THE COMPANY
Pursuant to the clause No.44 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Ltd is managing efficiently 
automated IT enabled website. The website is successfully sa�sfying to its stakeholders and shareholders. Investors can 
get all updated informa�on from the Company website. The Company's official website www.cra�smanfootwear.com is 
linked with the website of the stock exchange(s). The Company makes available the detailed disclosures on its website 
immediately as required under the lis�ng regula�ons of the concerned stock exchange(s)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders wholehearted coopera�on and 
ac�ve support in assis�ng me and the Board of Directors to effec�vely discharge our du�es during the year under review.
The Board also recognizes that the a�ainment made during the year was possible because of the coopera�on, posi�ve 
support and guidelines it had received from the Government of Bangladesh, Ministry of Finance, Na�onal Board of 
Revenue. Ministry of Commerce, Board of Investment. Dhaka Electric Supply Company Limited (DESCO), Ansar & VDP, 
Bangladesh Power Development Board (PDB), Titas Gas Transmission & Distribu�on Company Ltd. and the people of the 
locality. Accordingly, the Board offers its utmost and sincere gra�tude to them.

We would also like to express our gra�tude to the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock 
Exchange PLC, Chi�agong Stock Exchange PLC. Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, The Central Depository of 
Bangladesh Limited and other business associates for their valuable sugges�ons, con�nuous support and coopera�on 
extended to the company.

We would also like to thank our Auditor, G.Kibria & Co., Chartered Accountants for their efforts for �mely comple�on of 
the audit. We would like to express our gra�tude to our bankers and financial ins�tu�ons, customers, suppliers, 
insurance companies and service providers for providing all the necessary and �mely support to enable and enhance our 
growth and profitability.
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Lastly, we would like to express our deepest apprecia�on for the services and the loyalty of all our execu�ves, officers and 
employees of the company at all levels, without whom it would have been impossible to have delivered such a solid 
performance.

I now request the valued shareholders to kindly accept and approve the Auditors' Report, Annual Audited Accounts 
2023-2024 and the Directors Report placed before you.

Thanking you

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rezina Begum
Chairman
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Aligning with the "CORE VALUE" CFAL Management developed the communica�on structure to free flow of informa�on to 
the stakeholders. Company has in place an effec�ve system of communica�on directed towards too aware its 
Shareholders and other stakeholder in compliance with the disclosure requirements.

MODE OF COMMUNICATION
All informa�on, that are disclosed to the Regulators like the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 
and the Stock Exchanges are simultaneously made available to the Shareholders of the Company in the Investor's 
Rela�ons sec�on of the Company's website h�p:// www.cra�smanfootwear.com.

GENERAL MEETING
The Company recognizes the rights of the Shareholders and accordingly ensures that their right to voice their opinion 
is guaranteed at all the Shareholders' meet such as Annual and Extraordinary General Mee�ngs (AGM & EGM, All 
members of the Board of Directors and the senior management team a�end the General Mee�ng (AGM) so that the 
queries of the Shareholders regarding the financial and non-financial ma�ers of the Company are appropriately 
explained/answered. In principle, general mee�ngs are effec�ve pla�orm in facilita�ng communi- ca�on between 
the Shareholders and the Company.

DIRECT COMMUNICATIONS
Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Reports of the company predictably upload in the website of the company, Moreover, 
these reports are also kept readily available at the Head Office of the Company for any stakeholders to use whenever 
required. The reports are also regularly uploaded to the Company website www.cra�smanfootwear.com for informa�on 
of the Shareholders and any prospec�ve investors. These detail repor�ng structure provide them the opportunity to 
make cri�cal analysis about the Company and investment in it.

MEDIA COMMUNICATION
In compliance with the Regulatory Compliance, Price Sensi�ve Informa�on, No�ce, Financial Statements are 
published in the Na�onal Dailies Newspapers and Online News portals in Bangla and English as and when the 
occasion arises.

COMPANY WEBSITE
All Financial results, key performance indicators, compliance reports, other important financial non-financial data, 
shareholding informa�on etc. are posted on the company’s website. h�p://www.cra�smanfootwear.com. Important 
events and announcements of the Company are also regularly posted in the website for the Shareholders' kind 
informa�on. Furthermore, informa�on such as the Record Date, No�ce of the Annual General Mee�ng etc. is 
regularly reported to the Stock Exchanges. so the updated informa�on is available.

REGULATORS WEBSITE
Regulatory No�ce and declara�ons are duly reported to DSE and CSE, in order to inform the related par�es
through the Regulator's website.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION & MANAGEMENT OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS
In case of any queries related to the Shareholding of the Company, Shareholders may e-mail at 
cra�smanfootwear.bd@gmail.com or contact the dedicated officer by calling at (+88-01813-168906)

Sadat Hossain Salim
Managing Director
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MD & CFO'S DECLARATION

The Board of Directors
Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
 House 47 Lake Circus Kalabagan Dhaka.

Subject: Declara�on on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024

Dear Sirs,

We do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories limited for the year ended on 30 June 2024 have 
been prepared in compliance with Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IAS) or Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there-from has been adequately disclosed:

(2) The es�mates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in 
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transac�ons and the Company's state of affairs reasonably and fairly presented in its 
financial statements:

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and 
accoun�ng records,

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies 
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng in preparing the financial statements is appropriate 
and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also cer�fy that:
1) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024 and that to the best of our knowledge 

and belief
a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading:
b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with exis�ng 

accoun�ng standards and applicable laws.
1) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the Company during the year which 

are fraudulent, illegal or viola�on of the Company's code of conduct for the company's Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Md Ferdous Hossain 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Sadat Hossain Salim 
Managing Director



Annual Report 2023-2024 |21

Cra�sman Footwear & Accessories Ltd

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Cra�sman Footwear & Accessories Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Cra�sman Footwear & Accessories Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the statement of financial posi�on as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including summary of significant accoun�ng policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi�on of 
the Company as at June 30, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accord-
ance with Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs). Our responsibili�es under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with 
the Interna�onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Ma�er
We draw your a�en�on to Note # 16.00 to the financial statements regarding WPPF payable, the company should 
comply with the procedure men�oned in the Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this ma�er.

Key Audit Ma�ers
Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
ma�ers. In addi�on to the ma�er described in the Basis for Opinion sec�on we have determined the ma�ers 
described below to be the key audit ma�ers to be communicated in our report.

During the year, the Company has recognized revenue of 
BDT  767,722,128 for the year ended 30 June 2024 (BDT  
734,258,701 for the year ended 30 June 2023). The 
Company’s revenue recogni�on process are not complex 
and does not involve high levels of judgement. However this 
a significant driver of Company performance and has major 
impact on financial statement user’s decision making. Finally 
this account always has risk of management over-ride of 
internal controls. 

Our audit procedures included:
� Obtain an understanding of Company’s internal controls,

systems and processes around revenue recogni�on 
and accounts receivable. 

� Review invoices, delivery reports and other suppor�ng
documents such as payment support to ensure 
occurrence and completeness of revenue recognized. 

� Test Subsequent receipts for receivable balances to 
substan�ate existence, collectability and completeness 
of accounts receivables recognized on the books.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Revenue and Accounts Receivables

How our audit addresses the Key Audit Ma�er
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Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for informa�on other than financial statements and auditor’s report. The other informa-
�on comprises of the Director’s Report, Corporate Governance Compliance Report, Business Responsibility & 
Sustainability Report and Management Discussion and Analysis. We expect to receive this other informa�on a�er the 
date of our auditor’s report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed on the other informa�on obtained prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

Responsibili�es of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal Controls
Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regula�ons 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements,

During the year, the Company has recognized revenue of 
BDT  767,722,128 for the year ended 30 June 2024 (BDT  
734,258,701 for the year ended 30 June 2023). The 
Company’s revenue recogni�on process are not complex 
and does not involve high levels of judgement. However this 
a significant driver of Company performance and has major 
impact on financial statement user’s decision making. Finally 
this account always has risk of management over-ride of 
internal controls. 

� Policy of revenue recogni�on.
� Assessing the appropriateness of the Company’s 

accoun�ng policies for revenue recogni�on and 
compliance of those policies with applicable 
accoun�ng standards.

� Inspect correspondence with clients and customers 
to determine whether provisions are necessary. 

The Company’s inventory balance as at 30 June 2024 was 
BDT  252,954,364 (BDT 232,595,590 as at 30 June 2023). 
There is es�ma�on performed by management in regards to 
obsolescence and determina�on of net realizable value. 
Based on the requirement of es�mates and the fact that this 
is a major asset category, this was determine to be a key 
audit ma�er. 

Our audit procedures included:

� Obtain an understanding of Company’s internal 
controls, systems and processes around inventory 
management. 

� Perform procedures over inventory purchase to 
substan�ate existence, completeness and valua�on 
of inventory

� Perform Physical inspec�on of inventory to determine
the existence and valua�on of inventory

� Perform price tes�ng of inventory to determine 
inventory valua�on and determine whether inventory 
is obsolete or not. 

� Revenue prices received by the Company and the 
overall gross margin earned to determine whether 
the Company is able to recover the net realizable 
value of inventory. 

How our audit addresses the Key Audit Ma�er

Inventory

Details of Inventory are included in Note 6.00 to the Financial Statements
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that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skep�cism 
throughout the audit. We also:

� Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from 
fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, 
misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. 

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 
related disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to 
cease to con�nue as a going concern.

� Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presenta�on. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the 
planned scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about 
the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communica�on.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant no�fica�ons issues 
by Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

� We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit and made due verifica�on thereof;

� In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appeared from our examina�ons of those books and proper returns adequate for the 
purpose of our audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

� The statement of financial posi�on and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by 
the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

� The expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company’s business

Date: 07 November, 2024
Dhaka, Bangladesh
DVC: 2411070392AS216090

A.K Gulam Kibria, FCA (#392), 
Engagement Partner
G. KIBRIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
Statement of Financial Posi�on

As at 30 June 2024

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 4.00 429,585,254            435,907,211          
Capital Work in Progress 5.00 -                             -                           

429,585,254            435,907,211          

Current Assets
Inventory 6.00 252,954,364            232,595,590          
Accounts  Receivables 7.00 179,363,778            136,577,968          
Advances, Deposits  & Prepayments 8.00 3,078,729                3,860,864              
Cash Incen�ve Receivables 9.00 70,463,500              11,832,526            
Cash & Cash Equivalents 10.00 36,185,296              90,482,731            

542,045,667            475,349,679          
971,630,921            911,256,890          

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 11.00 280,000,000            230,000,000          
Retained Earnings 128,173,678            73,690,839            

408,173,678            303,690,839          
Non-Current Liability
Long-Term Loan 12.00 370,104,549            373,953,591          
Deferred Tax Liabi l ity 14.02 1,179,997                1,011,478              

371,284,546            374,965,069          

Current Liability
Short Term Loan 13.00 154,075,400            194,683,168          
Provision for Income Tax 14.00 2,093,634                2,114,144              
Accounts  Payables 15.00 7,203,154                9,458,869              
Liabi l i�es  for Expenses 16.00 28,800,508              26,344,800            

192,172,697            232,600,981          
Total Liability 563,457,243            607,566,050          
Total Liability & Shareholder's Equity 971,630,921            911,256,889          
Net Asset Value per Share 23 17.09                        16.72                      
The accompanying notes  form an integral part of these financial statements  and are to be read in conjunc�on 
therewith.

Total Current Assets
Total Assets

Total Shareholder's Equity

Total Non-Current Liability

Total Current Liability

Total Non-Current Assets

Amount in BDTNotesPar�culars

Date: 28 October, 2024  
Place: Dhaka. 
DVC: 2411070392AS216090

A.K Gulam Kibria, FCA (#392), 
Engagement Partner
G. KIBRIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Director Managing Director Chairperson

 Company SecretaryChief Financial Officer 
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Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Share Capital Share Money 
Deposit

Retained 
Earnings Total 

Opening Balance as at 01 July, 2023 230,000,000    -                  73,690,839       303,690,839       
Prior year adjustment -                     -                  -                     -                        
Restated Balance 230,000,000 -                 73,690,839    303,690,839    
Issuance of Shares for Cash 50,000,000       -                  50,000,000         
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -                     -                  54,482,838       54,482,838         
Closing Balance as at 30 June, 2024 280,000,000 -                 128,173,678 408,173,678    

Share Capital Share Money 
Deposit

Retained 
Earnings Total 

Opening Balance as at 01 July, 2022 181,000,000    -                  12,950,939       193,950,939       
Prior year adjustment 18,000,000       18,000,000         
Restated Balance 181,000,000 -                 30,950,939    211,950,939    
Issuance of Shares for Cash 49,000,000       -                  -                     49,000,000         
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -                     -                  42,739,900       42,739,900         
Closing Balance as at 30 June, 2023 230,000,000 -                 73,690,839    303,690,839    

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these �inancial statements and are to be read in conjunction 
therewith.

Particulars

Amount in BDT

Amount in BDT

Particulars

Director Managing Director Chairperson

 Company SecretaryChief Financial Officer 
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Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Date: 28 October, 2024  
Place: Dhaka.

Director Managing Director Chairperson

 Company SecretaryChief Financial Officer 

Notes 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Cash flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es
Cash received from Sale ac�vi�es  and Other Income 26 779,785,945       787,222,814                
Cash paid to vendors  & suppl iers 27 (760,886,630)      (756,760,830)               
VAT Paid 28 (900,541)              (1,101,916)                    
Tax Paid 28 (11,637,400)        (16,471,764)                 
Net Cash Inflow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es 6,361,375            12,888,304                   

Cash Flow from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es
Acquisi�on of Fixed Assets 29 (24,558,981)        (23,491,918)                 
Addi�ons  to Capital Work in Progress 29 -                        -                                 
Net Cash ou�low from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (24,558,981)        (23,491,918)                 

Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es
Increase in share capital 30 50,000,000          49,000,000                   
Increase in  Loan 31 (86,099,828)        20,363,974                   
Net Cash Inflow from Financing Ac�vi�es (36,099,828)        69,363,974                   

Net Change in Cash during the year (54,297,435)        58,760,360                   
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 90,482,731          31,722,371                   
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 36,185,296          90,482,731                   

Net Opera�ng Cash Flow per Share 24 0.27                      0.71                               

Par�culars

The accompanying notes  form an integral part of these financial statements  and are to be read in conjunc�on 
therewith.
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 CRAFTSMAN FOOTWEAR & ACCESSORIES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2024  

1.00 Repor�ng en�ty       
"Cra�sman Footwear & Accessories Limited (""the Company"") is a private limited company incorporated in Bangladesh 
on 24 May 2017 vide registra�on number C-138024/2017 under the Companies Act, 1994. On June 26 2021, the 
Company was converted into a Public Limited Company. The registered office of the Company is situated at A6, 14 
New Eskaton, Moghbazar, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.The Company is located in village Jagirchit, Boldighat, Sreepur 
within the district of Gazipur, Bangladesh. The factory is owned by the Company. The principal ac�vi�es of the 
Company is to manufacture leather goods and cra�s, footwear and other related products. "

The Factory started commercial opera�ons from June 16, 2020 as a private limited company while as a public limited 
company started opera�ons from April 01, 2021.

2.00 Basis of Prepara�on
2.01 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards
(IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regula�ons 
in Bangladesh. Cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es are prepared under direct method as prescribed by the Securi�es 
and Exchange Rules 1987

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and con�ngent 
considera�on that have been measured at fair value where applicable. The financial statements provide compara�ve 
informa�on in respect of the previous period and have been prepared on going concern basis.   

Sl. No. IAS No.

1 1
2 2
3 7
4

8

5 10
6 12
7 16
8 19
9

20

10 21
11 23
12 24
13 26

14 27
15 28
17 32
18 33
19 34
20 36
21

37

22 38
23 39

24 40
25 41

Accoun�ng Pol icies, Changes  in Accoun�ng Es�mates  
and Errors

Events  a�er the Repor�ng Period
Income Taxes
Property, Plant & Equipment

Compliance StatusIAS Title

Presenta�on of Financial Statements
Inventories
Statement of Cash Flows

Investment Property Not Appl icable

Borrowing Cost
Related Party Disclosures

Not Appl icable

Not Appl icable
Not Appl icable

Accoun�ng and Repor�ng by Re�rement Benefit Plans

Separate Financial Statements
Investments  in Associates  and Joint Ventures

Compl ied
Compl ied

Not Appl icable
Compl ied

Compl ied

Impairment of Assets
Provisions, Con�ngent Liabi l i�es  and Con�ngent 
Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recogni�on and Measurement

Agriculture Not Appl icable

Financial Instruments: Presenta�on
Earnings  per Share
Interim Financial Repor�ng

Not Appl icable

Compl ied

Not Appl icable

Compl ied
Compl ied
Compl ied

Compl ied
Compl ied
Compl ied

Compl ied

Compl ied
Compl ied
Compl ied
Compl ied

Accoun�ng for Government Grants  and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance

Employee Benefits

The Effects  of Changes  in Foreign Exchange Rates
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2.01.01 Other Regulatory Compliances
 The Company is also required to comply with the following major legal pro
 visions in addi�on to the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and 
 regula�ons in Bangladesh:       

 - The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984

 - The Income Tax Rules, 1984

 - Income Tax Act-2023       

 - Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012

 - Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016 

 - The Customs Act, 1969

 - The Stamp Act, 1899

 - The Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission Act, 1993

 -The Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission Rules, 1987

 - DSE/CSE Rules

 - DSE Lis�ng Regula�ons, 2015

 - Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 (as amended to 2013)

 - Bangladesh Labor Rules, 2015

2.02 Date of Authoriza�on       

 The financial statements were authorized for issued by the Board of Directors on 28 October 2024 for   

 publica�on. 

2.03 Repor�ng Period       

 The financial period of the Company covers one year from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 and is followed 

 consistently.  

Sl. No. IFRS No.

1 1

2 2
3 3
4 4

5 5

6 6

7 7
8 8
9 9

10 10
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15
16 16

IFRS Title Compliance Status

Insurance Contracts Not Appl icable
Non-current Assets  Held for Sale and Discon�nued 
Opera�ons Not Appl icable

Explora�on for and Evalua�on of Mineral Resources Not Appl icable

First-�me adop�on of Interna�onal Financial 
Repor�ng Standards Not Appl icable

Share-based Payment Not Appl icable
Business  Combina�ons Not Appl icable

Consol idated Financial Statements Not Appl icable
Joint Arrangements Not Appl icable
Disclosure of Interests  in other En��es Not Appl icable

Financial Instruments: Disclosures Compl ied
Opera�ng Segments Not Appl icable
Financial Instruments Compl ied

Leases Not Appl icable

Fair Value Measurement Compl ied
Regulatory Deferral Accounts Not Appl icable
Revenue from Contracts  with Customers Compl ied
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2.04 Func�onal and Presenta�on Currency 
These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is both func�onal and 
presenta�onal currency of the Company. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded 
off to the nearest thousand BDT unless otherwise indicated. Because of these rounding off, in some 
instance the total may not match the sum of individual balance.  

2.05 Use of Es�mates and Judgements
The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judge-
ments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these es�mates.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accoun�ng policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabili�es.      
 
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Manage-
ment has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair 
values.

Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valua�on adjustments. If third party 
informa�on, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then management 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third par�es to support the conclusion that these valua�ons 
meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valua�ons 
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valua�on techniques as follows.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its en�rety in the same level of the fair 
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the en�re measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the repor�ng 
period during which the change has occurred.

2.06 Basis for Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and 
con�ngent considera�on that have been measured at fair value where applicable. The financial statements 
provide compara�ve informa�on in respect of the previous period and have been prepared on going 
concern basis.       

        
2.07 Compara�ves and rearrangement

Compara�ve informa�on has been disclosed for the year ended 30 June 2023 for all numerical informa-
�on in the financial statements and also the narra�ve and descrip�ve informa�on when it is relevant for 
understanding of the current financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged 
or reclassified whenever considered necessary to conform to current year's presenta�on.

3.00 Significant accoun�ng policies
The Company has consistently applied the following accoun�ng policies for the period presented in these 
financial statements.
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A Revenue
In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15: the Company recognizes revenue when control of the  
services has been transferred to the customer and the performance obliga�on has been completed. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the amount of considera�on to which the Company expects to 
be en�tled to, including variable considera�on, if any, to the extent that it is highly probable that a signifi-
cant reversal will not occur.

The Company does not have mul�ple revenue streams and the goods sold by the Company do not 
typically include mul�ple performance obliga�ons. The Company's typical performance obliga�ons 
includes sale domes�c manufacturing of footwear, leather goods and cra�s and other related products. 
The performance obliga�on is typically sa�sfied point in �me at the �me of shipment and payment is 
typically due within 30 days of delivery. Contracts entered into by the Company typically do not include 
variable considera�on elements and the stand alone selling price is usually explicitly agreed before 
shipment.

"The Company operates two produc�on units located in separate produc�on facili�es. Unit I is located in 
a rented facility and focuses on selling footwear products and accessories in the local market through 
various retail outlets. Unit

II is focused on manufacturing footwear products and accessories for export. For both units, revenue is 
recognized at a point in �me when the customer obtains control of the asset and the performance obliga-
�on of the contract is sa�sfactorily completed. 

In line with paragraph 47 of IFRS 15, the transac�on price for a performance obliga�on is determined 
by the amount the Company expects to be en�tled to for exchange of the promised good. Therefore the 
Company determines the transac�on price excluding any VAT collected. For Unit I, the proceeds for 
transferring the goods are collected by a third party (the retail unit owner) and the Company is only 
en�tled to receive a net por�on of the proceeds (a�er the retail owner deducts their por�on of the 
revenue). " 

B Foreign currency transac�ons
Transac�ons in foreign currencies are translated into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transac�ons. All Monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated to the func�onal currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of statement of financial 
posi�on (the repor�ng date). Non-monetary assets and liabili�es that are measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated into Taka at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 
exchange rate at the date of the transac�on.

Foreign currency differences arising on the se�lement of monetary items or on transla�ng monetary 
items at the end of the repor�ng period are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income as per IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

C Employee benefits
i. Short-Term Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for 
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obliga�on can be es�mated reliably.

ii. Worker's profit par�cipa�on fund
The Company is currently in the process of establishing a fund for workers as “Workers’ Profit Par�cipa-
�on Fund (WPPF)” and 5% of the profit before charging such expense will be transferred to this fund as 
per sec�on 234 of Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (amended in 2013). Till the establishment of the fund, 
the Company is unable to transfer the required amounts to the fund. However the Company has made 
all necessary provisions to recognize the expense related to the WPPF. 
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D Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax
Income tax expense for current year is recognized on the basis of Company's computa�on based on the 
best es�mated assessable profit for the year at the applicable tax rate pursuant to provision of Income 
Tax Ordinance 1984. As per paragraph 46 of IAS 12: Income Taxes, current tax is the expected tax payable 
on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substan�vely enacted at the repor�ng 
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods. The rate of Income Tax for the 
fiscal year 2023-2024 for the Company was 12%.        

ii. Deferred tax
"Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabili�es for financial repor�ng purposes and the amounts used for taxa�on purposes. Deferred tax 
is not recognised for temporary differences on the ini�al recogni�on of assets or liabili�es in a transac�on 
that is not a business combina�on and that affects neither accoun�ng nor taxable profit or loss.Deferred 
tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deduc�ble temporary differences 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be 
used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reduc�ons are reversed when the 
probability of future taxable profits improves.Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
repor�ng date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used.Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substan�vely 
enacted at the repor�ng date.Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset if there is legally enforceable 
right to offset current tax liabili�es and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority but they intend to se�le current tax liabili�es and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and 
liabili�es will be realised simultaneously."
 

E Property and equipment        
 i. Recogni�on and measurement

"Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and any accumu-
lated impairment losses (if any). Cost includes expenditure that is directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on 
of the asset and any other costs directly a�ributable to bringing the asset to working condi�on for its 
intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located. Buildings constructed by the Company on leasehold land are capitalised and included under 
the category of leasehold propertyIf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment.Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recog-
nised in profit or loss."

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embod-
ied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. All other repair and 
maintenance expenses are charged in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
as they are incurred.

iii. Deprecia�on
Deprecia�on is calculated to write off the cost of items of property and equipment less their es�mated 
residual values using the reducing balance method over their es�mated useful lives, and is recognised in 
profit or loss. Deprecia�on on addi�ons are charged from the period of acquisi�on. On disposal of an 
asset, deprecia�on is charged up to the period prior to the disposal. No deprecia�on is charged for land 
and assets under construc�on. The Company is following this policy consistently from past years.
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The rates of deprecia�on based on the useful lives of assets are as follows:

Deprecia�on methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each repor�ng date and adjusted 
if appropriate. No significant adjustments in respect to items of property, plant & equipment was done 
in the current or prior twelve-month period.

iv. Re�rement and disposals.
An asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from the re�rement or disposal of an asset is determined as the differ-
ence between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is included in 
profit or loss.

v. Impairment
The carrying amount of the en�ty’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets 
(considered as disclosed separately under respec�ve accoun�ng standards), are reviewed at each report-
ing date to determine whether there is any indica�on of impairment. If any such indica�on exists, the 
assets’ recoverable amounts are es�mated. However, no such condi�ons that might be sugges�ve of a 
heightened risk of impairment of assets existed at the repor�ng date.

An impairment loss (if any) is recognised through the statement of comprehensive income whenever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is calculated as present value of es�mated future cash flows, that 
will be generated by the use of that asset, discounted at an appropriate rate. 

"Impairment indicators comprise of (but not limited to):  - reduced earnings compared to expected 
future outcome.  - material nega�ve development trends in the sector or the economy in which the 
Company operates. - damage to the asset or changed use of asset. " 

Per annum

Land & Development 0%
Factory Bui lding 5%
Plant & Machinery 10%
Generator 10%
Factory Equipments 15%
Electric  Installa�on 15%
Deep Tubewell 10%
Furniture & Fixture 10%
Air Condi�oner 10%
Vehicle 10%
Motor Cycle / Easy bike 10%
Crokeries  & Cutlaries 10%
Shoe Last 10%
Office Equpments 10%
Computer & Accessories 15%
Office Decora�on 10%
TV/Refrigerator 15%
So�ware 10%
Fire equipment 15%

Par�culars
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vi. Borrowing Cost
In accordance with IAS 23 "Borrowing Costs", interest expenses rated to pre-produc�on period have 
been capitalized and opera�onal costs were charged to Statement of Profit or Loss & Comprehensive 
Income.

G  Capital Work in Progress
Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for acquisi�on and/or construc�on of items of 
property, plant and equipment that are not ready for use which is measured at cost. The company has 
submental asset in work in progress which has become ready to use end of the current accoun�ng 
period. Therefore this asset will transfer to Property, Plant & Equipment next accoun�ng period and will 
charge deprecia�on accordingly.

H  Financial instruments 
"Trade receivables and debt securi�es issued are ini�ally recognised when they are originated. Allother 
financial assets and financial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument."

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial 
liability is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transac�on costs that are directly 
a�ributable to its acquisi�on or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is 
ini�ally measured at the transac�on price

"On ini�al recogni�on, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amor�sed cost; Fair Value Through 
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity investment; or Fair Value 
Through Profit or Loss( FVTPL).Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their ini�al recogni�on 
unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected 
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first repor�ng period following the change in the 
business model.A financial asset is measured at amor�sed cost if it meets both of the following condi-
�ons and is not designated as at FVTPL: – it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold 
assets to collect contractual cash flows; and– its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. A debt 
investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following condi�ons and is not designated as at 
FVTPL:– it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets; and– its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding."

On ini�al recogni�on of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably 
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This elec�on is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amor�sed cost or FVOCI as described above are meas-
ured at FVTPL.

Financial liabili�es
The Company’s financial liabili�es are classified either into financial liabili�es recognised at amor�zed 
cost or financial liabili�es recognised at fair value through the statement of income. Financial liabili�es 
are classified as current unless The Company has the uncondi�onal right to defer the payment of the 
debt to at least 12 months from the end of the financial period. Financial liabili�es (or parts thereof) are 
only derecognised once the debt has ex�nguished, i.e. once the contractually specified obliga�on is 
discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Financial liabili�es recognised at amor�zed cost       
"The loans raised by The Company are included in financial liabili�es recognised at amor�zed cost. They 
are measured at their ini�al recogni�on at fair value using the effec�ve interest rate method. A�er the 
ini�al recogni�on, loans are measured at amor�zed cost. Interests on loans are expensed through the 
statement of income over the maturity of the debt using the effec�ve interest rate method.
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Financial liabili�es recognised at fair value through the statement of income.
In The Company, financial liabili�es recognised at fair value through the statement of income include 
deriva�ves that are not eligible for hedge accoun�ng. Realised and unrealized gains and losses from 
changes in fair values of deriva�ves are recognised in the statement of income in the period in which they 
have arisen."

Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the finan-
cial expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transac�on in which substan-
�ally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which The 
Company neither transfers nor retains substan�ally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does 
not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabili�es
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obliga�ons are discharged or 
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and 
cash flows of the modified liability are substan�ally different, in which case a new financial liability based 
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecogni�on of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount ex�nguished and 
the considera�on paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabili�es assumed) is recognised in 
profit or loss."       

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses     
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading or is 
designated as such on ini�al recogni�on. Directly a�ributable transac�on costs are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and 
changes therein, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at bank including 
bank overdra�s that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables consist of unpaid bills receivable from customers and other par�es. Trade an 
dother receivables are recognised ini�ally at original invoice amount and subsequently measured at the 
remaining amount less expected credit loss at the year-end, which is the discre�on of management.

Deposits
Deposits are measured at payment value which are expected to be recovered a�er comple�on of certain 
period or purpose.

Advance and prepayments       
A�er ini�al recogni�on advances are carried at cost less deduc�ons, adjustments or charges to other 
account heads such as property, plant and equipment or inventory etc. Prepayments are ini�ally meas-
ured at cost. A�er ini�al recogni�on prepayments are carried at cost less charges for the period.

Trade and other payables       
Trade and other payables are recognised when its contractual obliga�ons arising from past events are 
certain and the se�lement of which is expected to result in an ou�low from the Company of resources 
embodying economic benefits. Trade and other payables are recognised ini�ally at fair value. Subsequent 
to ini�al recogni�on, trade and other payables are stated at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest 
method.       
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I  Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly a�ributable to the issue of ordinary 
shares are recognised as a deduc�on from equity, net of any tax effects. Paid up capital represents total 
amount contributed by the shareholders and bonus shares, if any, issued by the Company to the ordinary 
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are en�tled to receive dividends as declared  from �me to �me 
and are en�tled to vote at shareholders’ mee�ngs. In the event of a winding up of the Company,  ordinary 
shareholders rank a�er all other shareholders and creditors and are fully en�tled to any residual 
proceeds of liquida�on.

J Impairment  
i. Recogni�on
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss and receivables are assessed at each 
repor�ng date to determine whether there is objec�ve evidence that any par�cular asset is impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objec�ve evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred a�er the ini�al 
recogni�on of the asset, and that the loss event had a nega�ve effect on the es�mated future cash flows 
of that asset that can be es�mated reliably.

The carrying value of the non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each repor�ng 
date to  determine whether there is any indica�on of impairment. If any such indica�on exists, the asset’s 
recoverable amount  is es�mated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of 
the asset or its cash genera�ng unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses, if any, are recog-
nised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

ii. Calcula�on of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of asset is the greater of its net selling price or its value in use. The la�er is 
determined by discoun�ng the es�mated future cash flows to a present value using a discount rate which 
reflects the current market assessment of the �me value of money and risk specific to the asset. For an 
asset that does not generate significantly independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is deter-
mined for the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset belongs.

iii. Reversal of impairment 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the es�mates used to determine the recov-
erable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecia�on or amor�sa�on, 
if no impairment loss had been recognised.

K Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on. When the 
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense rela�ng to a provision 
is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the �me value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discoun�ng is used, the increase 
in the provision due to the passage of �me is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period and adjusted to reflect the current best 
es�mate. If it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits are required to 
se�le the obliga�on, the provisions are reversed.

L Con�ngencies
Con�ngencies arising from claims, li�ga�on, assessments, fines, penal�es, etc. are recorded when it is 
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can reasonably be measured.  
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i. Con�ngent liability
A con�ngent liability is a possible obliga�on that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the en�ty.

The Company discloses con�ngent liability in the financial statements. A provision is recognised in the 
period in which the recogni�on criteria of provision is met. 

ii. Con�ngent asset
A con�ngent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the en�ty. A con�ngent asset should not be recognised. Only when the realisa�on of the 
related economic benefits is virtually certain should recogni�on take place provided that it can be meas-
ured reliably because, at that point, the asset is no longer con�ngent.

M Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS 7 Statement of cash flows under 
the direct method.       

N Current Versus non-current classifica�on
The Company presents assets and liabili�es in the statement of financial posi�on based on current/non-
current classifica�on. An asset is considered current when: 
- It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal opera�ng cycle.
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
- It is expected to be realized within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period.
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to se�le liabili�es for at least 
twelve months a�er the repor�ng period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when: 
- it is expected to be se�led in the normal opera�ng cycle.
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be se�led within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period. 
- Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are classified as non-current assets and liabili�es.

All other liabili�es are considered non-current. 

O Inventories
Raw Materials and finished goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 
inventories, except goods in transit, is measured based on the weighted average method and includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, produc�on or conversion costs and other costs 
incurred in bringing them to their exis�ng loca�on and condi�on. In the case of manufactured invento-
ries and work-in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of produc�on overheads based on normal 
opera�ng capacity. Material in transit represents the cost incurred up to the date of the statement of 
financial posi�on for the items that were not received �ll to the date of repor�ng. Inventory losses and 
abnormal losses are recognised as expenses.

P Finance Income and expenses
Finance income can comprise of interest on financial deposits with banks. Finance income is recognised 
on an accrual basis and shown under statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  
Finance costs comprise interest expense on overdra�, borrowings from bank and lease interest.

In line with paragraph 33 of IAS 7, interest payments are presented as financing cash flows in the state-
ment of cash flows
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Q Earnings per Share (EPS)
The Company presents its basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjus�ng the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary 
shares, if any.

R Events a�er the Repor�ng Period
Events a�er the repor�ng period that provide addi�onal informa�on about the Company’s posi�on at 
the repor�ng date or those that indicate the going concern assump�on is not appropriate are reflected 
in the financial statements. Amounts recognised in the financial statements are adjusted for events a�er 
the repor�ng period that provide evidence of condi�ons that existed at the end of the repor�ng period. 
No adjustment is given in the financial statements for events a�er the repor�ng period that are indica�ve 
of condi�ons that arose a�er the repor�ng period. Material non-adjus�ng events are disclosed in the 
financial statements.The Company has adequate resources to con�nue in opera�on for the foreseeable 
future. For this reason management con�nues to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial 
statements. The current resources of the Company provide sufficient funds and a�ributable credit 
facili�es to meet the present requirements of its exis�ng business.

S Segment Repor�ng
The Company is domiciled in Bangladesh. The Company is a primarily engaged in the manufacturing and 
selling leather goods and cra�s, footwear and other related products locally and for export. With only 
one major category of products, segment repor�ng is not part of the regular internally reported financial 
informa�on to the chief opera�ng decision maker. Therefore, it is not possible to segment the Company’s 
results without a high degree of es�ma�on. Therefore the Company did not perform segment repor�ng 
when preparing this set of financial statements.        
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Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
Notes to the financial statements

As at 30 June 2024

Notes
 As at

30 June
2023  

 As at
30 June
2024  

4.00 Property, Plant & Equipment

Opening balance (At cost) as  at 01 July 2023 498,943,449            364,825,138            

Add: Addi�on during the year 24,558,981              134,118,311            

Less: Adjustment -                             -                             

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2024 523,502,430            498,943,449            

Less: Accumulated Deprecia�on :

Opening Balance at 01 July 2023 63,036,239              30,444,530              

Add: Deprecia�on Charge during the Year 30,880,938              32,591,708              

Less: Adjustment -                             -                             

93,917,176              63,036,239              

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2024 429,585,254            435,907,210            

5.00 Capital Work in Progress

Opening balance as  at 01 July 2023 -                             110,626,393            

Add: Addi�on during the year -                             -                             

Less: Adjustment -                             110,626,393            

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2024 -                             -                             

6.00 Closing Inventory Unit-I Unit-II

Raw Materials Note:18.10 -                                162,052,464         162,052,464            208,231,413            

Work in Progress Note:18 -                                4,526,951             4,526,951                 6,961,357                 

Spare Parts -                                7,259,899             7,259,899                 -                             

Finished Goods Note:18 15,635,282                  63,479,768           79,115,050              17,402,820              

Total 15,635,282                  237,319,082         252,954,364            232,595,590            

7.00 Accounts Receivables

Export Sales  Receivables 179,104,288            136,577,968            

Local Sales  Receivables 259,490                    -                             

Total 179,363,778            136,577,968            

Par�culars

-

-

-

-

93,91

63,036,239

30,880,938

-

523,502,430

498,943,449

24,558,981

-

7,176

429,585,254
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Ageing of Receivable:
Amount Amount

1-30 days 89,552,144.10         
68,288,984

              
31-60 days 89,811,634              

68,288,984
              

61-90 days -                             -                             
91-180 days -                             -                             
181-365 days -                             -                             
Over 365 days -                             -                             
Total 179,363,778.20      136,577,968.00      

Disclosure as per Para F of Schedule XI, Part-1, The Companies Act, 1994
136,577,968            

-                             

-                             

136,577,968

8.00 Advances, Deposits & Prepayments
CDBL 400,000                    -                             
Advance to Western Footwear -                             

500,000
                    

Advance to Master Rack & Furniture -                             
900,000

                    
REB 920,019                    

920,019
                    

Security deposit Titas  gas 19,710                      -                             
Security - Unimart 100,000                    

100,000
                    

Security - Dcon Design Studio 1,100,000                 
1,100,000

                 
Advance Salary Note 8.01 339,000                    

140,845
                    

Shikkita Tech Ltd. 200,000                    
200,000

                    
Advance Income Taxes Note 8.02 -                             -                             
Total 3,078,729                 3,860,864                 

                   

-                             

-                             

Dura�on

Receivables  considered doub�ul or bad. 

Receivables considered good for which the company holds no security other
than the debtor's personal security. 

Receivables due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them
either severally or jointly with any other person or receivables due by firms
or private companies respec�vely in which any director is a partner or a
director or a member

Receivables  considered good and in respect of which the company is  fully secured. 

Receivables  due by companies  under the same management.
The maximum amount due by directors  or other officer of the company at
any �me during the year. 

Total

Notes
 As at

30 June
2023  

 As at
30 June
2024  

Par�culars

8.01 Advances Salary
Amount Amount

Md  Shafiqul Islam PD 8,000 -                            
Mr. Abdur Razzak Banglo 3,000 -                            
Md. Sohag Talukder Store 6,000 -                            
Md. Habibur Security 4,000 -                            
Md. Abdul Kader Store 20,000 -                            
Md. Mahfuj Alam Admin 9,000 -                            
Md. Shamol Hossain Maintanance 6,000 -                            
Md. Shadekul Islam Produc�on 8,000                        

Name Department
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Md. Noor Hossain Maintanance 7,500
Md. Sujon Mia Maintanance 8,000 -                            
Md. Saiful Islam Sobuj Planning 90,000 25,000
Md. Ramzan Ali Store 50,000 20,000
Md. Ripon Banglo 8,000 5,000                       
Md. Al Amin Admin 11,000 1,000                       
Maqsudul Hasan Admin 10,000 6,000                       
Md. Abul Hasan Banglo 6,000 8,000                       
Mst. Halima Begum Banglo - 6,200                       
Md. Abu Sayed Store - 12,000
Mst Sharmin Khanom Admin - 9,000                       
Md. Merazul Islam Maintanance - 5,000                       
Md. Gias Uddin Admin 2,500 30,000
Sultan Mahmud Cu�ng 5,000 
Harun Or Rashid (Sabuj) Quality - 13,645.00
Md. Sabuj Hawlader Admin 5,000 - 
Md.Mintu Driver 10,000 - 
Md. Hossen Cook 12,000 - 
Abdul Halim Driver 24,000 - 
Ripon Mia Driver 26,000 - 

339,000 140,845                 Total

Notes
 As at

30 June
2023  

 As at
30 June
2024  

Par�culars

8.02 Advance Income Taxes
Opening balance as  at 01 July 2023 -                             -                             
Add: Deduc�ons  at Source (Unit-i i)-Export Proceeds 6,907,295                 6,346,991                 
 Deduc�ons  at Source (Unit-i i)-Incen�ves 4,709,595                 9,931,654                 
Add:  Deduc�ons  at Source (Unit-i) -                             118,119                    
Add: Advance Tax on Others 20,509                      75,000                      
Less: AIT adjusted -                             -                             
Closing Balance as at 30 June 2024 11,637,400              16,471,764              
Transfer to Income tax provision (11,637,400)             (16,471,764)             
Total -                             -                             

9.00 Cash Incen�ve Receivables
Cash Incen�ve Receivables 70,463,500              11,832,526              
Total 70,463,500              11,832,526              

10.00 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Bank balance Note 10.01 21,027,617              57,802,800              
Sundry Account Note 10.02 2,907,194                 17,104,351              
Cash in Hand Note 10.03 12,250,485              15,575,580              
Total 36,185,296              90,482,731              
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Notes  As at 
30 June 2024 

 As at 
30 June 2023 Particulars

10.01 Bank balance
BASIC Bank Ltd. #0198 146,532                    75,425                      
BASIC Bank Ltd. #1074 1                                 -                             
BASIC Bank Ltd. #1901 410,144                    12,736,836              
Standard Bank Ltd. #0021 2,234                         6,547                         
Bank Asia Ltd. #1245 20,430,662              44,921,075              
Bank Asia Ltd. #1582 9,483                         -                             
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. #0094 1,556                         1,453                         
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. #3658 11,116                      1,934                         
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. #0089 2,121                         3,530                         
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. #1192 3,628                         -                             
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. #5981 4,313                         9,400                         
Ci�zens Bank PLC #0346 5,830                         46,601                      
Sub Total 21,027,617              57,802,800              

10.02 Sundry Account (BASIC Bank Limited)
0929-02-0000423 BDT - 1 
2229-02-0000677 BDT 973                            973                            
4729-02-0000110 BDT 8,091                         8,091                         
0929-02-0000535 BDT 18,895                      8                                 
0911-09-0000291 USD 10,089                      15,504                      
0911-17-0005058 USD 27,064                      24,896                      
0911-17-0006104 USD 582,392                    -                             
0911-17-0006279 USD 7,926                         - 
0911-17-0006935 USD 3,257                         2,996                         
0911-17-0007291 USD 340                            313                            
0911-17-0007340 USD 15,745                      14,484                      
0911-17-0005411 USD 2,232,422                 1,054,261                 
0911-17-0005469 USD -                             394,539                    
0911-17-0005565 USD -                             234,768                    
0911-17-0005571 USD -                             21,767                      
0911-17-0005620 USD -                             1,248,912                 
0911-17-0005641 USD -                             752,937                    
0911-17-0005682 USD -                             2,794,500                 
0911-17-0005731 USD -                             10,535,400              

Sub Total 2,907,194                 17,104,351              

10.03 Cash in Hand
Head office 5,351,624                 12,020,558              
Factory 6,898,861                 3,555,022                 
Sub Total 12,250,485              15,575,580              

11.00 Share Capital 
Authorized Capital 
Authorized Capital, 100,000,000 Shares of Tk 10 each 1,000,000,000         1,000,000,000         
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital, 280,000,000            230,000,000            
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Notes  As at 
30 June 2024 

 As at 
30 June 2023 Par�culars

SL
Number

Designa�on No.
of Shares 

Amount As at 30 
June 2024

Amount  As at 30 
June 2023

1 Managing Director               6,870,560 68,705,600              68,705,600              
2 Director                 560,000 5,600,000                 5,600,000                 
3 Director                 560,000 5,600,000                 5,600,000                 
4 Director & Chairman                 560,000 5,600,000                 5,600,000                 
5 Director                 750,000 7,500,000                 7,500,000                 
6 Director                 750,000 7,500,000                 7,500,000                 
7 Director              1,949,440 19,494,400              19,494,400              
8 Director                 560,000 5,600,000                 5,600,000                 

12,560,000           125,600,000            125,600,000            
9   Shareholder 50,000                   500,000                    500,000                    

10   Shareholder 100,000                 1,000,000                 1,000,000                 
11   Shareholder 3,400,000             34,000,000              34,000,000              
12   Shareholder 250,000                 2,500,000                 2,500,000                 
13   Shareholder                 100,000 1,000,000                 1,000,000                 
14   Shareholder                 100,000 1,000,000                 1,000,000                 
15   Shareholder              1,000,000 10,000,000              10,000,000              
16   Shareholder              1,750,000 17,500,000              17,500,000              
17   Shareholder                 250,000 2,500,000                 2,500,000                 
18   Shareholder                 190,000 1,900,000                 1,900,000                 
19   Shareholder                 250,000 2,500,000                 2,500,000                 
20   Shareholder                 800,000 8,000,000                 8,000,000                 
21   Shareholder              1,000,000 10,000,000              10,000,000              
22   Shareholder              1,200,000 12,000,000              12,000,000              
23 IPO( IQIO)              5,000,000 50,000,000              

            15,440,000              154,400,000 104,400,000            

            28,000,000              280,000,000              230,000,000 

12.00Long Term Loan 
Basic Bank #1025 Old #001025 164,805,823            166,536,482            
Basic Bank #0993 Old #00993 164,071,399            164,346,191            
Basic Bank #1010 Old #001010 41,227,327              43,070,918              
Long Term Loan 370,104,549            373,953,591            

AAA Finance and Investment Limited

Md Masuduzzaman

Rahman and Associates Limited

Public Shareholder
B.                                                                        Sub Total

Grund Total (A+B)

M Shamsur Rahman
Mohammad Saiful Islam
Farhana Chowdhury 

The Company has 28,000,000 Shares of Tk 10 each which have been issued, subscribed and paid-up as at 30
June 2024. The details of this are as follows:

Sabrina Zaman

Ms Mahfuza Jahan

Md. Zahirul Islam
Md. Abu Syed Titu 
Mr Mahe Alam

Name

Mr. Sujit Kumar Roy Nandi
Prilink Securi�es Limited

Mr Sadat Hossain Salim  
Sara Hossain
Rumana Begum
Rezina Begum 

AAA Holdings Limited 

Fouzia Ferdous

A.                                                                       Sub Total

Shakhawat Hossain 
Mustaq Sadeq
Mohammad Ferdous Mazid

Lender: Basic Bank Ltd. Banani Branch
Security :Registered Mortage of following:

a. 124.74(one Hundred twenty four point seven four ) Decimal ,along with all structures have already been 
constructed if any or to be constructed there on, situated within the distric, Gazipur, police sta�on & sub 
-registry office -sreepur, Mouza -dhamrai having J.L. Nos CS, SA & RS perfaciant kha�an no C.S.B/204, SA-223 
& RS. 758 kha�an, 758/kh corresponds to dag no CS & SA 2609 R.S 10380, 10385 & 10389 having muta�on 
jote no-32 owned by Cra�sman Footwear & Accessories Ltd.
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b. 100 (one hundred) Decimal, along with all structures have already been constructed (if any ) or to be 
Constructed there on. Situated with in the District, Gazipur Sreepur, Mouza- dhamloi having J.L NOS. S.A, 129 
& R.S. 278, muta�on Jote no-5560 owned by Mr. Sadat Hossain Salim. police sta�on & sub-registry office.

c. 1448 s� Flat at 47 lake circus, kalabagan, Dhanmondi, Dhaka, owner Mr. Sadat Hossain Salim.
d. 1800 s� Flat #A-6 (south side) at 14, New Eskaton, Moghbazar, Dhaka.
e. Hypothica�on of stock, lien of receeivable, personal gurrantee of the directors and first floa�as charge on 
all moveable assets of the Company was bring down to 14%.

Notes  As at 
30 June 2024 

 As at 
30 June 2023 Par�culars

13.00 Short Term Loan Note Total Outstanding Total Outstanding
Short Term Loan 13.01 13,110,751              11,212,112              
Overdra� Loan 13.02 25,802,909              25,514,292              
Packing Credit Loan 13.03 13,013,783              9,595,724                 
Payment Against Documents 13.04 83,305,165              75,770,198              
HPSM-Transport Loan (Vehicle) 13.05 4,742,794                 5,920,572                 
Export Development Fund 13.15 -                             59,270,270              
Loan from Sadat Hossin Salim 14,100,000              7,400,000                 
Total Short Term Loan 154,075,400            194,683,168            

13.01 Short Term Loan 

Basic Bank #0281 8,673,729                 11,212,112              
Basic Bank #0873 4,437,022                 -                             
Total 13,110,751              11,212,112              

13.02 Overdra� Loan
Basic Bank #0241 15,946,246              15,343,066              
Basic Bank #0012 9,856,662                 10,171,226              
Total 25,802,909              25,514,292              

13.03 Packing Credit Loan
Basic Bank Ltd. #6678 622,237                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6683 856,698                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6699 699,632                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6706 1,568,563                 -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6711 682,075                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6727 622,190                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6732 521,706                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6748 742,432                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6753 484,853                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6769 651,522                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6774 657,582                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6780 769,705                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6795 550,338                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6802 501,956                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6818 705,561                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6823 242,915                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6839 560,417                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6844 596,703                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6850 626,941                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #6865 349,757                    -                             
Basic Bank Ltd. #5457 -                             361,689                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5478 -                             414,225                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5483 -                             493,029                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5499 -                             454,638                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5511 -                             437,707                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5527 -                             503,111                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5532 -                             652,032                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5548 -                             509,148                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5553 -                             513,892                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5569 -                             234,865                    
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Notes
As at

30 June 2024 
As at

30 June 2023 Par�culars

Basic Bank Ltd. #5574 -                             400,474                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5580 -                             195,720                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5595 -                             196,724                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5602 -                             175,647                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5618 -                             291,071                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5623 -                             230,850                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5639 -                             853,151                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5644 -                             356,900                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5650 -                             492,241                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5665 -                             739,866                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5671 -                             578,458                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5686 -                             291,736                    
Basic Bank Ltd. #5691 -                             218,551                    
Total 13,013,783              9,595,724                 

13.04 Payment Against Documents
BASIC#11071 893,802                    -                             
BASIC#11086 2,707,787                 -                             
BASIC#11091 8,070,270                 -                             
BASIC#11109 7,994,270                 -                             
BASIC#11114 5,858,023                 -                             
BASIC#11135 6,010,365                 -                             
BASIC#11141 4,384,220                 -                             
BASIC#11156 2,951,899                 -                             
BASIC#11161 4,504,163                 -                             
BASIC#11177 838,531                    -                             
BASIC#11182 4,619,025                 -                             
BASIC#11198 2,199,367                 -                             
BASIC#11205 2,411,593                 -                             
BASIC#11211 2,088,244                 -                             
BASIC#11226 702,752                    -                             
BASIC#11231 9,411,074                 -                             
BASIC#11247 2,041,060                 -                             
BASIC#11252 6,391,470                 -                             
BASIC#11268 1,699,711                 -                             
BASIC#11338 2,719,025                 -                             
BASIC#11343 4,808,512                 -                             
BASIC# 10234 -                             4,920,805                 
BASIC#10240 -                             7,061,954                 
BASIC#10255 -                             5,246,428                 
BASIC#10261 -                             2,454,407                 
BASIC#10276 -                             5,008,916                 
BASIC#10281 -                             1,509,707                 
BASIC#10297 -                             703,987                    
BASIC#10304 -                             2,547,925                 
BASIC#10310 -                             2,521,946                 
BASIC#10325 -                             3,927,907                 
BASIC#10331 -                             4,015,193                 
BASIC#10346 -                             6,924,345                 
BASIC#10351 -                             4,243,228                 
BASIC#10367 -                             7,040,522                 
BASIC#10372 -                             6,026,336                 
BASIC#10388 -                             7,058,943                 
BASIC#10393 -                             4,557,650                 
Total 83,305,165              75,770,198              
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Notes
As at

30 June 2024 
As at

30 June 2023 Par�culars

13.05HPSM-Transport Loan (Vehicle)
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. #0355 1,586,942                 2,092,253                 
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. #0356 578,360                    771,138                    
Ci�zen Bank PLC #0001 2,577,492                 3,057,180                 
Total 4,742,794                 5,920,572                 

14.00Current Taxes and Deferred Taxes Notes
Provision for Current Taxes
Opening balance as at 01 July 2023 2,114,144                 2,189,144                 
Add: Current Tax expense 14.01 11,616,890              16,396,764              
Less: Tax deducted at source 8.02 (11,637,400)             (16,471,764)             
Closing balance as at 30 June 2024 2,093,634                 2,114,144                 

14.01Current Tax Expense Calcula�on

Unit-II (Export) 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Income from local opera�ons -                          -                             
Income from export opera�ons 748,810,769         711,118,470            
Non Opera�ng Income 113,480,601         103,451,706            
Net Opera�ng Income 862,291,369         814,570,176            
Less: WPPF (2,716,319)            (2,729,937)               
Taxable Income 859,575,050         811,840,239            
Provision for the year 11,616,890              16,396,764              

14.02Deferred Tax Liability and Expense Calcula�on

WDV of Assets for Accoun�ng purpose for Unit-I                15,997,567 17,525,074              
WDV of Assets for Tax purpose for Unit-I                11,277,578 13,846,972              
Temporary Difference                  4,719,989 3,678,102                 
Ra�o of temporary difference subject to deferred taxes                                 -   -                             
Net Temporary Difference                  4,719,989 3,678,102                 

25.00% 27.5%
Deferred Tax Liability                  1,179,997 1,011,478                 

Opening Balance as at 01 July 2023                  1,011,478 594,987                    
Deferred Tax expense / (gain) for the year                      168,519 416,491                    
Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) as at 30 June 2024                  1,179,997 1,011,478                 

15.00Accounts Payables
Amout in BDT  Amount in BDT 

Jobeda Enterprise                  1,337,214                  1,532,995 
All in All BD Corpora�on                              915                                 -   
Abul Hossain & Sons                      107,100                        51,100 
TG Express Bangladesh                  2,196,978                  1,482,237 
Swarna Communica�on                                 -                          46,066 
HR Sign                                 -                          34,000 
Computer Technology                        71,310                        71,310 
Rubel Produc�on                        25,704                                 -   
H.B.Q Engineering                      117,800                                 -   
M/S Rana Bithi Pachar Poribahan                      194,000                                 -   
Na�onal Cargo                              300                                 -   

As per Paragraph 81C of IAS 12 Income Taxes, an explana�on of the rela�onship between the tax expense
(income) and accoun�ng profit is provided below: 

Company Tax Rate is 25%

Name of Supplier

The Company has one source of temporary difference between carrying value of assets and liabili�es for tax and 
accoun�ng purposes. This relates to the temporary difference that can arise due to difference in deprecia�on 
rates for accoun�ng and tax purposes. Since the Company is engaged in export oriented ac�vi�es, the Company's 
tax payable is determined by taxes deducted at source or minimum taxes calculated based on revenue instead of 
taxable profits. Therefore it is highly unlikely that any temporary differences caused by deprecia�on will result in 
addi�onal taxes being paid by the Company (or any tax benefits from loss carryforwards).
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Director Remunera�on of BDT 18,000,000 of Mr. Sadat Hossain Salim, will be paid in future when the 
company's financials are in a favourable posi�on. The payment of this remunera�on will require future 
approval from the Board of Directors as well as approval from Shareholders through a general mee�ng. This 
waiver does not create any tax impact for the company since it already pays the minimum tax. To ensure a 
fair presenta�on, we have adjusted for this waiver by resta�ng it in the retained earnings.

Notes
As at

30 June 2024 
As at

30 June 2023 Par�culars

Western Footwear Ltd                      376,005                                 -   
4S Advance Technology                        71,500                                 -   
New Machinery & Engineering                      108,000                      108,000 
RSF Steel Cra�                                 -                          37,993 
Mithila & Adnan Enterprise                                 -                        172,498 
Maa Enterprise                      125,653                      475,653 
M/S Riyadh Enterprise                      204,300                        46,000 
Suchana Enterprise                                 -                        284,438 
FR Enterprise                                 -                        400,050 
SR Conpora�on and service Center                      310,102                      310,102 
Tithi Enterprise                      713,979                  1,907,367 
Nitol Motors Ltd.                      556,740                  1,299,060 
Mabruk Footwear Ltd                      235,554                                 -   
Logic So�ware Ltd.                      450,000                  1,200,000 

                 7,203,154                  9,458,869 

Ageing of  Payable:
Amount

2,561,197                 3,363,252                 
4,641,957                 6,095,617                 

-                             -                             
-                             -                             
-                             -                             
-                             -                             

7,203,154                 9,458,869                 

16.00Liabili�es for Expenses
Electricity Bill-Factory 655,163                    868,410                    
Electricity Bill-HO 9,838                         9,708                         
Electricity Bill-Corporate Office 24,119                      20,580                      
Salary & Allowance-HO 784,000                    584,000                    
Salary & Allowance-Factory 3,048,023                 1,938,242                 
Wages-Factory 5,596,591                 7,001,434                 
Over�me 1,000,449                 1,995,234                 
Audit Fee 250,000                    230,000                    
WPPF Payable 7,351,722                 4,701,226                 
Office Rent 16.10 2,493,000                 1,998,000                 
Director Remunera�on 16.20 7,315,000                 6,900,000                 
Vat Payable 272,603                    97,966                      
Total 28,800,508              26,344,800              

16.10Office Rent
Office Rent-HO 632,000                    592,000                    
Office Rent-Corporate Office 571,000                    536,000                    
Rent-Unit-I (Factory)                                           1,290,000                 870,000                    

2,493,000                 1,998,000                 
  

16.20Director Remunera�on
Mr. Mahe Alam 200,000                    150,000                    
Ms. Sara Hossain 200,000                    150,000                    
Mr. Sadat Hossain Salim 6,915,000                 6,600,000                 

7,315,000                 6,900,000                 
Disclosure regarding Director Remunera�on:

Over 365 days
Total

Dura�on

181-365 days

31-60 days
61-90 days
91-180 days

Amount
1-30 days

Total
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Amount in BDT

30.06.24 30.06.23

26.00 Cash Received from sales and Others

Turnover during the year Note 17.00        767,722,128         734,258,701 
Changes in Accounts Receivable Note 7.00        (42,785,810)        (51,746,474)
Non operating income Note 20.00        113,480,601         103,451,706 
Changes in Incentive Receivable Note 9.00        (58,630,974)             1,258,880 

     779,785,945      787,222,813 

27.00 Cash Payment vendor & suppliers

Cost of Goods Sold Note 18.00 (656,432,602)     (608,090,413)     
Changes in Inventories Note 6.00 (20,358,774)       (63,540,857)       
Changes in Trade Payable increase/(decrease) Note 15.00 (2,255,715)         3,595,298           
Depreciation Note 4.00 30,880,938         32,591,708         
Change in  Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments Note 8.00 782,135              78,455                 
Operating expenses Note 19.00 (100,815,275)     (124,924,575)     
Change in Liabilities Expenses Note 16.00 (857,704)                       (7,441,755)
Adjustment -                                 18,000,000 
Financial expense 21.00 (11,829,632)       (7,028,692)         

(760,886,630)  (756,760,831)  

28.00 Income Tax Paid

Payment of AIT Note 8.02 (11,637,400)       (16,471,764)       
Assessed Tax paid during the year Note 14.00 -                       -                       
VAT Paid (900,541)             (1,101,916)         

(12,537,940)    (17,573,680)    

29.00 Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment

Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment Note 4.00 (24,558,981)       (23,491,918)       
Acquisition of Capital Work in Progress Note 5.00 -                       -                       
Adjustment of Property, Plant & Equipment Note -                       -                       
Adjustment of Accumulated Depreciation Note -                       -                       

(24,558,981)    (23,491,918)    

30.00 Share capital

Increase of share capital Note 11.00 50,000,000         49,000,000         
Share Money Deposit -                       -                       

50,000,000      49,000,000      
31.00 Receipt of Long Term Borrowing

Changes of Long Term Loan Note 12.00 (3,849,042)         6,758,996           
Changes of short Term Loan Note 13.00 (40,607,768)       47,638,978         
Finance expense Note 21.00 (41,643,018)       (34,034,000)       

(86,099,828)    20,363,974      

Particulars
Amount in BDT
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(Signature of the Shareholder) (Signature of Proxy)   

BO ID No.

No. of Shares held .............................................................................................................                                  Dated.................................................

ATTENDANCE SLIP

PROXY FORM

BO ID No.

No. of Shares held .................................................................................                                   

(Signature of Proxy)                                                                                                                                            (Signature of the Shareholder)

               Date .................................

N.B: Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy under Hybrid AGM platform are requested to
complete the Attendance Slip and deposit the same at the Registered Office of the Company before the meeting.

Revenue
Stamp

Tk. 20.00

N.B.:   This Form of Proxy, duly signed (as recorded with the company), stamped and completed must be sent through email 
to the Share Department of the Company at craftsmanfootwear.bd@gmail.com at least 48 hours before the day and time 
fixed for the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

I do hereby submit the Attendance Slip in connection with the 05th Annual General Meeting of Craftsman Footwear and Acces-

sories Limited held today Sunday, December 29, 2024 at 11.00 p.m. at the Hybrid AGM platform at the link 

https://agmbd.live/craftsman2024

Full Name of the Member :__________________________________________________________________________________

I/We…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...

Of…………….…...…………being a member(s) of Craftsman Footwear and Accessories Limited do hereby appoint 

Mr/Mrs……………………………………………………......………………………………………………………………………

of…………………………………………………...........……………………………………………………………………………
as my/our Proxy to attend and vote on behalf of me/us at the 05th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 
on Sunday, December 29, 2024 at 11.00 p.m. at the Hybrid AGM platform at the link https://agmbd.live/craftsman2024 
and any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this ……………………………. day of 2024

Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
47, Lake Circus Kalabagan Dhaka

Cra�sman Footwear and Accessories Limited
47, Lake Circus Kalabagan Dhaka




